
 
 
 
 

      Niagara County Center for Economic Development   •   6311 Inducon Corporate Drive, Ste. 1   •   Sanborn.  NY  14132 

 
 
REGULAR NCIDA/NCDC/NADC BOARD MEETING                           
 
DATE: September 11, 2024 
MEETING TIME:   9:00 a.m.  
MEETING PLACE:   Niagara County Industrial Development Agency 
                                   Vantage Center, Suite One 
  6311 Inducon Corporate Drive 
   Sanborn, NY  14132 
 

 
 

Board of Directors:  Staff Members: 

 
____  Mark A. Onesi, Chairman ____  Andrea Klyczek, Executive Director 

____  Jason Krempa, First Vice Chairman ____  Michael S. Dudley, Finance Manager 

____  Clifford Scott, Second Vice Chairman ____  Susan Barone, Grants & Operations Manager 

____  William L. Ross, Secretary ____  Jeremy Geartz, Project Manager 

____  Mark Berube, Assistant Secretary ____  Julie Lamoreaux , Administrative & HR Officer 

____  Ryan J. Mahoney, Member ____  Mark J. Gabriele, Agency Counsel 

____  Anne E. McCaffrey, Member  

____  David J. Masse, Member  

____  William Fekete, Member   

 
 
1.0 Meeting Called to Order – M. Onesi   
          
2.0 Roll Call – J. Lamoreaux  
 
3.0 Introduction of Guests – M. Onesi 
 
4.0 Pledge of Allegiance – M. Onesi   
 
5.0         Approval of Meeting Minutes – W. Ross 

5.1    Regular NCIDA/NCDC/NADC – August 14, 2024                        
                       

6.0 Finance & Audit Committee Reports – J.Krempa   
 6.1  Agency Payables – August 31, 2024             
 6.2 Budget Variance Report – August 31, 2024  

  
 
  
  
  
   

 
 
 
 
 



  
 

7.0 Unfinished Business  
    

   
8.0 New Business 
         

8.1 235 River Road LLC – J.Geartz 
8.1.1 Preliminary Resolution                         

 8.1.2 Authorize Public Hearing                      
     

8.2 MT Altimeter LLC – J.Geartz  
8.2.1 Preliminary Resolution        

8.2.2 Authorize Public Hearing    
        

9.0 Agency Counsel – M. Gabriele 
 
10.0 Information Items   
   
11.0 Any Other Matters the Board Wishes to Discuss  
  
12.0  Next Regular NCIDA/NCDC/NADC Meeting: 
 

DATE:     October 9, 2024       
  TIME:       **  9:00 a.m. ** 
  PLACE:   Niagara County Center for Economic Development 
 
13.0 Adjournment - M. Onesi           



 
5.1  

Meeting Minutes 
  



 
 
 
 

      Niagara County Center for Economic Development   •   6311 Inducon Corporate Drive, Ste. 1   •   Sanborn.  NY  14132 

 
 
REGULAR NCIDA/NCDC/NADC BOARD MEETING                           
 
DATE: August 14, 2024 
MEETING TIME:   9:00 a.m.  
MEETING PLACE:   Niagara County Industrial Development Agency 
                                   Vantage Center, Suite One 
  6311 Inducon Corporate Drive 
   Sanborn, NY  14132   
 
 
1.0 Meeting Called to Order  
 

The regular meeting of the Niagara County Industrial Development Agency was called to order 
by Chairperson Onesi at 9:00 a.m.  

          
2.0 Roll Call  
 

Mark A. Onesi, Chairperson   Present 
 Jason Krempa, First Vice Chairman  Present  
 Clifford Scott, Second Vice Chairman  Excused  
 William L. Ross, Secretary   Present 
 Mark Berube, Assistant Secretary  Present 
 Ryan J. Mahoney, Member   Present 
 Anne E. McCaffrey, Member   Present  
 David J. Masse, Member   Excused  
 William Fekete, Member   Present 
 
3.0 Introduction of Guests  
 

Robert Creenan, Niagara Gazette   
Jonathan Epstein, Buffalo News       
 
 Staff Present 

 
Andrea Klyczek, Assistant Director 
Michael S. Dudley, Finance Manager 
Jeremy Geartz, Project Manager  
Susan Barone, Grants & Operations Manager 
Julie Lamoreaux, Administrative & HR Officer 
Mark J. Gabriele, Agency Counsel 
 

4.0        Pledge of Allegiance  
 

Mr. Dudley led the pledge of allegiance.   
 
 
 
 



NCIDA/NCDC/NADC Board Meeting Minutes 
August 14, 2024     

Page 2 of 6 

 
5.0         Approval of Meeting Minutes  

5.1    Regular NCIDA/NCDC/NADC – July 10, 2024   
 

Mr. Ross motioned to approve the meeting minutes; Mr. Fekete seconded the motion.  
The motion passed.   

 

6.0 Finance & Audit Committee Reports  
 6.1  Agency Payables – June 30, 2024  
 

Mr. Krempa stated that the monthly payables have been reviewed and found to be in 
order.  

 
Mr. Krempa made a motion to approve the monthly payables; Ms. McCaffrey 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 

 
 6.2 Agency Payables – July 31, 2024  
 

Mr. Krempa stated that the monthly payables have been reviewed and found to be in 
order.  

 
Mr. Krempa made a motion to approve the monthly payables; Mr. Mahoney seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed. 

 

 6.3 Budget Variance Report – June 30, 2024 
 

Mr. Krempa stated that the budget variance reports have been reviewed and found to 
be in order.  

 
Mr. Krempa made a motion to approve the Budget Variance Report; Mr. Mahoney 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 

 
 

 6.4 Budget Variance Report – July, 31, 2024  

 

Mr. Krempa stated that the budget variance reports have been reviewed and found to 
be in order.  

 
Mr. Krempa made a motion to approve the Budget Variance Report; Mr. Mahoney 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 

 

7.0 Unfinished Business  
   
8.0 New Business 
         

8.1 OAHS Niagara Towers TC LLC Apartment Series 2023 Bonds 
 

Mr. Gabriele stated that OAHS Niagara Towers TC LLC Apartment Series 2023 Bonds has 
requested an amendment their existing bond documents.  

 
 
 
 



NCIDA/NCDC/NADC Board Meeting Minutes 
August 14, 2024     

Page 3 of 6 

 
8.1.1 Amendment to Bond Documents                            
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MODIFICATION OF CERTAIN TERMS AND PROVISIONS RELATED 
TO (i) THE $19,875,000 ORIGINAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NIAGARA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAX-EXEMPT MULTIFAMILY HOUSING REVENUE BONDS (OAHS 
NIAGARA TOWERS TC LLC APARTMENTS), SERIES 2023 (THE "NIAGARA 2023 BONDS") AND (ii) 
THE $16,215,000 ORIGINAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NIAGARA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY TAX-EXEMPT MULTIFAMILY HOUSING REVENUE BONDS (OAHS URBAN PARK TC LLC 
APARTMENTS), SERIES 2023 (THE "URBAN PARK 2023 BONDS") AND THE EXECUTION OF 
RELATED DOCUMENTS 
 

Mr. Krempa made a motion to approve the amendment; Mr. Fekete seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed.   

 
The question of the approval of the Resolution as duly put to a vote on roll call, which 
resulted as follows: 
 

    Yea    Nay  Abstain    Absent     
  

Mark Onesi    x 
 

Jason Krempa    x                               
   

Clifford Scott                x            
  

William L. Ross    x                                     
 

Mark Berube    x                         

Ryan Mahoney    x                             

Anne E. McCaffrey   x            

David J. Masse                x 

  William Fekete    x             

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 
 

8.2 OAHS Urban Park Towers TC LLC Apartment Series 2023 Bonds  
 

Mr. Gabriele stated that OAHS Niagara Towers TC LLC Apartment Series 2023 Bonds has 
requested an amendment their existing bond documents.  

 
8.2.1 Amendment to Bond Documents                             
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MODIFICATION OF CERTAIN TERMS AND PROVISIONS RELATED 
TO (i) THE $19,875,000 ORIGINAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NIAGARA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAX-EXEMPT MULTIFAMILY HOUSING REVENUE BONDS (OAHS 
NIAGARA TOWERS TC LLC APARTMENTS), SERIES 2023 (THE "NIAGARA 2023 BONDS") AND (ii) 
THE $16,215,000 ORIGINAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NIAGARA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY TAX-EXEMPT MULTIFAMILY HOUSING REVENUE BONDS (OAHS URBAN PARK TC LLC 
APARTMENTS), SERIES 2023 (THE "URBAN PARK 2023 BONDS") AND THE EXECUTION OF 
RELATED DOCUMENTS 

 



NCIDA/NCDC/NADC Board Meeting Minutes 
August 14, 2024     

Page 4 of 6 

 
Mr. Krempa made a motion to approve the amendment; Mr. Fekete seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed.   

 
The question of the approval of the Resolution as duly put to a vote on roll call, which 
resulted as follows: 
 

    Yea    Nay  Abstain    Absent     
  

Mark Onesi    x 
 

Jason Krempa    x                               
   

Clifford Scott                x            
  

William L. Ross    x                                     
 

Mark Berube    x                         

Ryan Mahoney    x                             

Anne E. McCaffrey   x            

David J. Masse                x 

  William Fekete    x             

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 
 

8.3 Cataract Grant  
 8.3.1 Live-USA Incorporated  
 

Mr. Geartz stated that Live-USA Incorporated plans to renovate the vacant 80 room Howard 
Johnson located on approximately 2 acres at 472 Main Street in Niagara Falls. The total project 
cost will be $16 million. With $2.8 million going towards the music venue, and $1.5 million going 
to the restaurant and bar. The hotel will be a unique property that is to include a celebrity-
endorsed restaurant and bar, and an indoor music amphitheater with live music regularly 
scheduled.  The company plans to create an immersive “Rock & Roll” experience, complete with 
genre and artist-specific floors and personalized recording studios with instruments and 
microphone.   Guests will have VIP access to daily concerts and live events.   
 
Through outreach to the Travel Trade market, they will be able to bring in tour operator groups 
for overnight accommodations, as well as with conferences and events.  They will target the 
leisure market for overnight accommodations in drive-time markets such as Cleveland and 
Columbus OH, Pittsburgh and Erie PA, Rochester and Syracuse NY.  They would target the local 
market (including Southern Ontario) and encourage locals to be “Tourists in their own 
backyards”.  These staycations will add to the economic impact by targeting off-season and 
midweek, which is not typically filled by leisure tourists. 

 
Mr. Gabriele added that this grant would only apply to the music venue and the restaurant/bar 
area.   He also reminded the Board that this is a reimbursable grant, therefore, there will only be 
reimbursement upon receipt of expenditures along with a certified letter from a Certified Public 
Accountant attesting that the expenditures were made in respect to this project.   

   
 
 
 



NCIDA/NCDC/NADC Board Meeting Minutes 
August 14, 2024     

Page 5 of 6 

 
8.3.1 Live-USA Incorporated                                            
 

Mr. Ross made a motion to approve the Cataract Grant; Ms. McCaffrey 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed.   

 
The question of the approval of the Resolution as duly put to a vote on roll call, which 
resulted as follows: 
 

    Yea    Nay  Abstain    Absent     
  

Mark Onesi    x 
 

Jason Krempa    x                               
   

Clifford Scott                x            
  

William L. Ross    x                                     
 

Mark Berube    x                         

Ryan Mahoney    x                             

Anne E. McCaffrey   x            

David J. Masse                x 

  William Fekete    x             

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 
 

9.0 Agency Counsel  
 

Mr. Gabriele stated that Niagara Shores Campground and Conference Center, LLC is now current 
and up to date on their account.   

 
10.0 Information Items  
 

There were no information items at this time.   
   
11.0 Any Other Matters the Board Wishes to Discuss 
 

There were no matters the board wished to discuss.   
   

12.0  Next Regular NCIDA/NCDC/NADC Meeting: 
 

DATE:     September 11, 2024       
  TIME:       **  9:00 a.m. ** 
  PLACE:   Niagara County Center for Economic Development 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NCIDA/NCDC/NADC Board Meeting Minutes 
August 14, 2024     

Page 6 of 6 

 
13.0 Adjournment  
 

Mr. Onesi made a motion to adjourn; Mr. Krempa seconded the motion.  The meeting 
adjourned at 9:12 a.m.  
 
Respectfully Submitted:  Reviewed By:  Approved By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________ ___________________         _____________________ 
Julie Lamoreaux   Andrea Klyczek          William L. Ross 
Administrative Assistant Executive Director             Secretary  

 



 
6.1 

Agency Payables 
 

 
 
 













 
6.3 

Budget Variance 
Reports 

  













 
8.1 

235 River Road 
LLC 

 
 

 



 
PROJECT SUMMARY 
235 River Road LLC 

 

Applicant: 235 River Road LLC 

Project Location: 235 River Road, North Tonawanda, New York 14120 

Assistance: 10 or 15 Year Brownfield PILOT 
Sales Tax Abatement 
Mortgage Recording Tax Abatement  

Description: 235 River Road LLC is a proposed mixed-use redevelopment project on 
3.15 acres in North Tonawanda, NY.  The project will consist of two 
buildings totaling 87 market-rate apartments and a total of 111,689 SF. 
101,391 SF of apartments, 2,690 SF of community space for residents, 
and 7,608 SF of commercial space. Building A will be comprised of 7,608 
SF of Single-Story Commercial Space, 2,690 SF of single-story community 
space for residents, and 4-story building featuring 39 apartment units (15 
one-bedroom Units and 24 two-bedroom Units). Building B will consist of 
4-story building featuring 48 apartment units (16 one-bedroom units and 
32 two-bedroom units), with 4 one-bedroom units per floor and 8 two- 
bedroom units per floor.  The property will also contain 166 parking 
spots.  This parcel is located in Distressed Census Trac 231. 

Project Costs: Acquisition 
Construction/Improvements 
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 
Soft costs  
Other 
                                           TOTAL 

$     825,000 
$28,021,762 
$     385,000         
$ 5,541,083         
$ 1,873,133 
$ 36,665,978 

Employment: 
 

Current jobs in Niagara County:  0                             
New Jobs in Niagara County within 3 years:  2.5 FTE        
Estimated Annual Payroll for New Jobs:  $61,250.00              
Skills:   Management, Administration, Maintenance.                               
 

Evaluative Criteria:  Redevelopment supports or aligns with regional or local development 
plans.  
 
 



Niagara County Industrial Development Agency
Date

Project Title
Project Location

Project Costs Value
Enter total project costs: $36,665,978
Local Construction Spending
% of locally sourced materials and labor 80%
In-region construction spending $29,332,782

Industry NAICS % of Total Investment Investment by Type

236220 100% $29,332,782
0 $0
0 $0

Most projects will only have one line related to construction type. Must be 100%----> 100% $29,332,782 ERROR

Unit Type 1
Description
Unit Count 0 0
Target Income (HH) 0

Unit Type 2
Description
Unit Count 0 0
Target Income (HH) 0

% Net New (See Instructions) 100% 0

Total Units -                  

Total Local Household Spending  

NAICS Lookup

Year 1 - Enter NAICS NAICS Count Per Job Annual Earnings Total Earnings
Residential Property Managers 531311 2.5 $24,500 $61,250 Missing NAICS $0

0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 $0 Missing NAICS $0

Total 2.5 Missing Earnings $61,250
Missing Jobs

Year 2 NAICS Count Per Job Annual Earnings Total Earnings
Residential Property Managers 531311 2.5 $24,500 $61,250 Missing NAICS $0

0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0

Total 2.5 Missing Earnings $61,250
Missing Jobs

0
Year 3+ (Full Employment) NAICS Count Per Job Annual Earnings Total Earnings
Residential Property Managers 531311 2.5 $24,500 $61,250 Missing NAICS $0

0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0

Total 2.5 Missing Earnings $61,250
Missing Jobs

MRB Cost Benefit Calculator

Jobs and Earnings from Operations

Commercial and Institutional Building Construction

September 3, 2024

Construction Phase - Project Assumptions

Project Costs

235 River Road LLC
North Tonawanda, NY 14120

New Household Spending - Residential and Mixed-Use Projects Only

Unit Types and Household Income Brackets

[Not Applicable]

[Not Applicable]
[Not Applicable]

Construction Economic Impacts

[Not Applicable]

 

Operation Phase - Project Assumptions



0

NCIDA Project Type

% Value PILOT Term (Years) 10
Sales Tax Exemption $1,151,670
Local Sales Tax Rate 4.00% $575,835 Escalation Factor 2%
State Sales Tax Rate 4.00% $575,835

Discount Factor 2%
Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $204,081
Local 0.25% $68,027
State 0.50% $136,054

Total Costs $3,560,771 Includes PILOT exemption, calculated below.

Adaptive Reuse, Community Development / 5-15 yr PILOT

Fiscal Impact Assumptions

Estimated Costs of Incentives



Year # Year
Property Tax 

WITHOUT 
Project

Estimated PILOT Property Tax on Full 
Assessment

Difference in Current 
vs. PILOT

Difference PILOT 
vs Full Taxes

1 2025 $6,300 $52,920 352,803.21$     $46,620 -$299,883
2 2026 $6,426 $70,561 352,803.21$     $64,135 -$282,243
3 2027 $6,555 $88,201 352,803.21$     $81,646 -$264,602
4 2028 $6,686 $105,841 352,803.21$     $99,155 -$246,962
5 2029 $6,819 $123,481 352,803.21$     $116,662 -$229,322
6 2030 $6,956 $141,121 352,803.21$     $134,166 -$211,682
7 2031 $7,095 $158,761 352,803.21$     $151,667 -$194,042
8 2032 $7,237 $176,402 352,803.21$     $169,165 -$176,402
9 2033 $7,382 $194,042 352,803.21$     $186,660 -$158,761

10 2034 $7,529 $211,682 352,803.21$     $204,153 -$141,121
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

Total $68,984 $1,323,012 $3,528,032 $1,254,028 -$2,205,020
Discounted-> $1,100,772 -$2,006,548

Property Tax Exemption



Year # Year Other Local Municipal 
Revenue

Other Payments to 
Private Individuals

1 2025  - 
2 2026  - 
3 2027  - 
4 2028  - 
5 2029  - 
6 2030  - 
7 2031  - 
8 2032  - 
9 2033  - 

10 2034  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 

Total $0 $0

County
City/Town/Village
School District

(To be used on the NYS ST-60)

Notes

Does the IDA believe the project can be accomplished in a timely fashion? Yes

$635,887

* Estimated Value of Goods and Services to be exempt from sales and use tax as a result of the Agency's involvement in the Project.  PLEASE NOTE: These amounts will 
be verified and there is potential for a recapture of sales tax exemptions (see "Recapture" on page 11 of the Application).

Other Benefits to Public and Private Individuals - If  Applicable

$14,395,875

Additional Revenues

$265,732
$421,394



Niagara County Industrial Development Agency
Date

Project Title
Project Location

Project Costs Value
Enter total project costs: $36,665,978
Local Construction Spending
% of locally sourced materials and labor 80%
In-region construction spending $29,332,782

Industry NAICS % of Total Investment Investment by Type

236220 100% $29,332,782
0 $0
0 $0

Most projects will only have one line related to construction type. Must be 100%----> 100% $29,332,782 ERROR

Unit Type 1
Description
Unit Count 0 0
Target Income (HH) 0

Unit Type 2
Description
Unit Count 0 0
Target Income (HH) 0

% Net New (See Instructions) 100% 0

Total Units -                  

Total Local Household Spending  

NAICS Lookup

Year 1 - Enter NAICS NAICS Count Per Job Annual Earnings Total Earnings
Residential Property Managers 531311 2.5 $24,500 $61,250 Missing NAICS $0

0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 $0 Missing NAICS $0

Total 2.5 Missing Earnings $61,250
Missing Jobs

Year 2 NAICS Count Per Job Annual Earnings Total Earnings
Residential Property Managers 531311 2.5 $24,500 $61,250 Missing NAICS $0

0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0

Total 2.5 Missing Earnings $61,250
Missing Jobs

0
Year 3+ (Full Employment) NAICS Count Per Job Annual Earnings Total Earnings
Residential Property Managers 531311 2.5 $24,500 $61,250 Missing NAICS $0

0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0

Total 2.5 Missing Earnings $61,250
Missing Jobs

[Not Applicable]

[Not Applicable]
[Not Applicable]

Construction Economic Impacts

[Not Applicable]

 

Operation Phase - Project Assumptions

MRB Cost Benefit Calculator

Jobs and Earnings from Operations

Commercial and Institutional Building Construction

September 3, 2024

Construction Phase - Project Assumptions

Project Costs

235 River Road LLC
North Tonawanda, NY 14120

New Household Spending - Residential and Mixed-Use Projects Only

Unit Types and Household Income Brackets



0

NCIDA Project Type

% Value PILOT Term (Years) 15
Sales Tax Exemption $1,151,670
Local Sales Tax Rate 4.00% $575,835 Escalation Factor 2%
State Sales Tax Rate 4.00% $575,835

Discount Factor 2%
Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $204,081
Local 0.25% $68,027
State 0.50% $136,054

Total Costs $4,795,582 Includes PILOT exemption, calculated below.

Estimated Costs of Incentives

Fiscal Impact Assumptions

Adaptive Reuse, Community Development / 5-15 yr PILOT



Year # Year
Property Tax 

WITHOUT 
Project

Estimated PILOT Property Tax on Full 
Assessment

Difference in Current 
vs. PILOT

Difference PILOT 
vs Full Taxes

1 2025 $6,300 $52,920 352,803.21$     $46,620 -$299,883
2 2026 $6,426 $52,920 352,803.21$     $46,494 -$299,883
3 2027 $6,555 $88,201 352,803.21$     $81,646 -$264,602
4 2028 $6,686 $88,201 352,803.21$     $81,515 -$264,602
5 2029 $6,819 $123,481 352,803.21$     $116,662 -$229,322
6 2030 $6,956 $123,481 352,803.21$     $116,525 -$229,322
7 2031 $7,095 $123,481 352,803.21$     $116,386 -$229,322
8 2032 $7,237 $123,481 352,803.21$     $116,244 -$229,322
9 2033 $7,382 $123,481 352,803.21$     $116,100 -$229,322

10 2034 $7,529 $158,761 352,803.21$     $151,232 -$194,042
11 2035 $7,680 $158,761 352,803.21$     $151,082 -$194,042
12 2036 $7,833 $158,761 352,803.21$     $150,928 -$194,042
13 2037 $7,990 $158,761 352,803.21$     $150,771 -$194,042
14 2038 $8,150 $158,761 352,803.21$     $150,612 -$194,042
15 2039 $8,313 $158,761 352,803.21$     $150,449 -$194,042
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

Total $108,950 $1,852,217 $5,292,048 $1,743,267 -$3,439,831
Discounted-> $1,456,517 -$2,984,097

Property Tax Exemption



Year # Year Other Local Municipal 
Revenue

Other Payments to 
Private Individuals

1 2025  - 
2 2026  - 
3 2027  - 
4 2028  - 
5 2029  - 
6 2030  - 
7 2031  - 
8 2032  - 
9 2033  - 

10 2034  - 
11 2035  - 
12 2036  - 
13 2037  - 
14 2038  - 
15 2039  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 

Total $0 $0

County
City/Town/Village
School District

(To be used on the NYS ST-60)

Notes

Does the IDA believe the project can be accomplished in a timely fashion? Yes

Other Benefits to Public and Private Individuals - If  Applicable

$14,395,875

Additional Revenues

$372,024
$589,951
$890,241

* Estimated Value of Goods and Services to be exempt from sales and use tax as a result of the Agency's involvement in the Project.  PLEASE NOTE: These amounts will 
be verified and there is potential for a recapture of sales tax exemptions (see "Recapture" on page 11 of the Application).





























































 

 

 

September 5, 2024 
 
 
Niagara County Industrial Development Agency 
Board of Directors 
6311 Inducon Corporate Drive Suite 1 
Sanborn, NY 14132 
 
Re:  IDA Application – Mixed-Use Project 
 235 River Road  
 Applicant: 235 River Road LLC 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
On behalf of the City of North Tonawanda, I would like to express support of the proposed mixed-
use redevelopment at 235 River Road that will transform an underutilized industrial site that is 
contaminated as a result of its long-term industrial use into a new project that is consistent with 
the City’s planning goals and objectives. 
 
I support the IDA Board of Directors granting the requested PILOT and related incentives that are 
being sought by the Applicant so that the mixed-use redevelopment project will be economically 
feasible. 
 
The mixed-use redevelopment project has been subject to an extensive review over the past several 
months and it has been viewed positively by the Planning Commission, the Historic Preservation, 
the Historic Preservation Commission, the Common Council and my office. 
 
If you have any questions regarding my upmost support for this project, do not hesitate to contact 
me at 716-695-8540. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Austin Tylec 

Mayor 



 
8.2 

MT Altimeter LLC 
 
 
 
 



 
PROJECT SUMMARY 

MT Altimeter LLC  
 

       

 

Applicant: MT Altimeter LLC  

Project Location: 6410 Inducon Corporate Dr., Wheatfield,  NY  

Assistance: 15 Year PILOT 
Sales Tax Abatement 
Mortgage Recording Tax Abatement 

Description: Project includes the build out of an 80,000 square foot state of the art 
cold storage, micro-fulfilment facility. The facility will include (5) separate 
freezer storage areas totaling 32,000 sq. ft., and (4) separate coolers 
totaling 16,000 sq. ft. of climate controlled space. The facility footprint 
will also accommodate clients in need of dry storage options, by 
reserving 12,000 sq. ft. of space to store dry goods. The entire facility will 
be erected in one single phase, and operations will graduate with 
demand.  
The facility will operate as an asset-light service structure that 
emphasizes agility, cost effectiveness, and customer-centricity that will 
include a software-based, warehouse management system (WSM) 
program and incorporate  and Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system 
to include inventory tracking and accounting tasks, and integrate with 
the latest 3PL (3rd Party Logistics) technology to optimize the storage 
system.  

Project Costs: Acquisition 
Construction/Improvements 
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 
Soft costs 
Other 
TOTAL 

$      250,000 
$ 10,500,000 
$    2,300,000 
$       400,000 
$                    0 
$  13,450,000 

Employment: 
 

Current jobs in Niagara County:  0 
New Jobs in Niagara County within 3 years:  8 
Estimated Annual Payroll for New Jobs:  $376,800 
Skills: management, warehouse, accounting, shipping clerk 

Evaluative Criteria: Regional wealth creation, sales/customers outside the area, investments 
in energy efficiency, research and development, in region purchases and 
services 



Niagara County Industrial Development Agency
Date

Project Title
Project Location

Project Costs Value
Enter total project costs: $13,450,000
Local Construction Spending
% of locally sourced materials and labor 80%
In-region construction spending $10,760,000

Industry NAICS % of Total Investment Investment by Type

236220 100% $10,760,000
0 $0
0 $0

Most projects will only have one line related to construction type. Must be 100%----> 100% $10,760,000 ERROR

Unit Type 1
Description
Unit Count 0 0
Target Income (HH) 0

Unit Type 2
Description
Unit Count 0 0
Target Income (HH) 0

% Net New (See Instructions) 100% 0

Total Units -                  

Total Local Household Spending  

NAICS Lookup

Year 1 - Enter NAICS NAICS Count Per Job Annual Earnings Total Earnings
Refrigerated Warehousing and Storage 493120 0 $0 $0 Missing NAICS $0

0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 $0 Missing NAICS $0

Total 0 Missing Earnings $0
Missing Jobs

Year 2 NAICS Count Per Job Annual Earnings Total Earnings
Refrigerated Warehousing and Storage 493120 8 $45,000 $360,000 Missing NAICS $0

0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0

Total 8 Missing Earnings $360,000
Missing Jobs

0
Year 3+ (Full Employment) NAICS Count Per Job Annual Earnings Total Earnings
Refrigerated Warehousing and Storage 493120 8 $45,000 $360,000 Missing NAICS $0

0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0
0 0 $0 Missing NAICS $0

Total 8 Missing Earnings $360,000
Missing Jobs

MRB Cost Benefit Calculator

Jobs and Earnings from Operations

Commercial and Institutional Building Construction

September 3, 2024

Construction Phase - Project Assumptions

Project Costs

MT Altimeter LLC 
6410 Inducon Corporate Dr. 

New Household Spending - Residential and Mixed-Use Projects Only

Unit Types and Household Income Brackets

[Not Applicable]

[Not Applicable]
[Not Applicable]

Construction Economic Impacts

[Not Applicable]

 

Operation Phase - Project Assumptions



0

NCIDA Project Type

% Value PILOT Term (Years) 15
Sales Tax Exemption $604,000
Local Sales Tax Rate 4.00% $302,000 Escalation Factor 2%
State Sales Tax Rate 4.00% $302,000

Discount Factor 2%
Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $77,813
Local 0.25% $25,938
State 0.50% $51,875

Total Costs $3,395,811 Includes PILOT exemption, calculated below.

Industrial, Manufacturing, Warehouse, Distribution / 15 yr PILOT

Fiscal Impact Assumptions

Estimated Costs of Incentives



Year # Year
Property Tax 

WITHOUT 
Project

Estimated PILOT Property Tax on Full 
Assessment

Difference in Current 
vs. PILOT

Difference PILOT 
vs Full Taxes

1 2023 $1,809 $60,311 $301,555 $58,502 -$241,244
2 2024 $1,846 $60,311 $301,555 $58,466 -$241,244
3 2025 $1,882 $90,467 $301,555 $88,584 -$211,089
4 2026 $1,920 $90,467 $301,555 $88,547 -$211,089
5 2027 $1,958 $120,622 $301,555 $118,664 -$180,933
6 2028 $1,998 $120,622 $301,555 $118,624 -$180,933
7 2029 $2,038 $120,622 $301,555 $118,585 -$180,933
8 2030 $2,078 $120,622 $301,555 $118,544 -$180,933
9 2031 $2,120 $120,622 $301,555 $118,502 -$180,933

10 2032 $2,162 $150,778 $301,555 $148,615 -$150,778
11 2033 $2,206 $150,778 $301,555 $148,572 -$150,778
12 2034 $2,250 $150,778 $301,555 $148,528 -$150,778
13 2035 $2,295 $150,778 $301,555 $148,483 -$150,778
14 2036 $2,341 $150,778 $301,555 $148,437 -$150,778
15 2037 $2,387 $150,778 $301,555 $148,390 -$150,778
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  - 

Total $31,290 $1,809,332 $4,523,330 $1,778,042 -$2,713,998
Discounted-> $1,491,265 -$2,356,891

Property Tax Exemption



Year # Year Other Local Municipal 
Revenue

Other Payments to 
Private Individuals

1 2023  - 
2 2024  - 
3 2025  - 
4 2026  - 
5 2027  - 
6 2028  - 
7 2029  - 
8 2030  - 
9 2031  - 

10 2032  - 
11 2033  - 
12 2034  - 
13 2035  - 
14 2036  - 
15 2037  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  - 

Total $0 $0

County
City/Town/Village
School District

(To be used on the NYS ST-60)

Notes

Does the IDA believe the project can be accomplished in a timely fashion? Yes

$507,603

* Estimated Value of Goods and Services to be exempt from sales and use tax as a result of the Agency's involvement in the Project.  PLEASE NOTE: These amounts will 
be verified and there is potential for a recapture of sales tax exemptions (see "Recapture" on page 11 of the Application).

Other Benefits to Public and Private Individuals - If  Applicable

$7,550,000

Additional Revenues

$255,678
$1,046,109


































	NCIDA Board Meeting Agenda-with NO  Motions 9.11.24.pdf
	Separation Sheets for Board Meeting
	NCIDA Board Meeting Minutes 8.14.24.pdf
	Separation Sheets for Board Meeting
	6.1 Payables.pdf
	Separation Sheets for Board Meeting
	6.2 Budget Variance.pdf
	Separation Sheets for Board Meeting
	235 River Road LLC.pdf
	Project Summary 235 River Road LLC_OPT.pdf
	235 River Road Project Summary.pdf
	235River Road LLC MRB 10 Year.pdf
	235River Road LLC MRB 15 Year.pdf

	Application 235 River Road LLC_OPT.pdf

	Letter of Support - IDA Application 235 River Rd Mixed Use.pdf
	Separation Sheets for Board Meeting.pdf
	8.2 MT Altimeter LLC.pdf
	Project Summary MT Altimeter LLC_OPT.pdf
	cold storage summary.pdf
	Protected MRB CBA Calculator - cold Storage.pdf

	Application.MT Altimeter LLC_OPT.pdf




